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SOLICITATION NO. 1-12-C211 
 

METROPOLITAN WASHINGTON AIRPORTS AUTHORITY 
 

PENSION AUDIT SERVICES 
 

OCTOBER 3, 2012 
 

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS 
 

 
NOTICE: Questions may have been edited for clarity and relevance 
 

1. At the Pre-Proposal Conference, there was clear direction that the contract conditions are not 
negotiable in any material way and that signing the cover page indicates acceptance. It was also stated that 
any changes/suggestions would be treated as a Q&A. Since the questions are due by September 28 - can 
we assume that questions relative to contract language - if any - cannot extend beyond the September 28 
cut off date? 

Answer:  Any request to the Terms and Condition of the RFP document are required by the due date 
for Question Submission.  

2. Who is the current auditor and are they invited to rebid? 

Answer:  CliftonLarsonAllen is the current auditor.  This is a full and open competitive solicitation; 
reference the Planholders List for potential Offerors.  

3. What are the asset sizes of the two plans? 

Answer:  $56,641,697 for Police & Firefighters Plan; $98,610,651 for General Employees Plan 

4. When do you expect to make a final hiring decision? 

Answer:  The Airports Authority anticipates a contract award by December, 2012. 

5. With respect to the contract provisions, we see the ability of the Authority to withdraw from contract 
(Section VII #19). Is there a clause that permits the audit firm to withdraw from the contract? If so, please 
point it out to us. If not, would the Contacting Officer consider an amendment to allow withdrawal, with 
significant notice, between the annual engagements? Our view of professional standards is that to maintain 
independence an audit firm must have the ability to determine whether to continue an engagement from 
year to year and this requirement is only superseded in limited situations where by law or regulation a 
government forbids such a withdrawal.  

Answer:  Professional standards require CPA firms to withdraw under certain circumstances.  
Should any of those circumstances occur, we would of course honor that requirement. 

6. Can you tell me if Clifton ever used any subcontractors? 

Answer:  No. 
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7. Investments are stated at fair value - Who is responsible for determining the proper valuation of the 
investment? 

Answer: The Plans’ trustee (Bank of New York Mellon). 

8. Who is responsible for calculating benefits paid? 

Answer: The Benefits Department. 

9. How is payroll processed – in-house or outsourced? 

Answer: Payroll is processed in-house using the Ceridian internet application. 

10. How is the census data accumulated? 

Answer: The Benefits Department provides the census data to the plan actuary.   

11. Who is the actuary of the plan? 

Answer: The Hay Group. 

12. Who is the custodian/trustee of the plan? 

Answer: The Bank of New York Mellon. 

13. Who is responsible for calculating the minimum required and maximum allowed employer 
contributions?  If the actuary, what procedures does the plan sponsor perform to review and check the 
actuary's calculations for accuracy? 

Answer: The Actuary.  The Benefits Department and Actuary go through a number of checks and 
balances to ensure the accuracy of valuation results. 

14. For participants electing to receive benefit payments in the form of periodic annuity payments that 
continue upon the death of the participant to the participant's beneficiaries at a reduced level, who is 
responsible for ensuring annuity payments are appropriately adjusted upon the death of the participant? 

Answer: The Benefits Department is responsible.   

15. Would you consider extending the due date of the proposal by one week given the other deadlines 
stated above? 

Answer:  No. 

16. The solicitation states that interim fieldwork takes place in December and January.  Year end 
fieldwork in February with final reports due in April 2013.  We noticed that the 2011 audit report is dated July 
10, 2012. Is there a need for the audit work to take place during the prescribed periods with final reports due 
in April - or can the work be scheduled a little later with audit reports due in July. It will be difficult for a well-
know, experienced CPA firm to offer discounted rates during the busiest months of the year.  A July due 
date would seem preferable similar to last year.  

Answer:  Each firm’s proposal should reflect the dates shown in the RFP. 
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17. Has the plans experience any fraud during the past 3 years? 

Answer:  No. 

18. Has the plans experienced any delays in issuing their financial statements in the past 3 years? If so, 
please explain the cause of the delay. 

Answer:  No. 

19. What kind of financial system is currently being used? 

Answer:  Oracle. 

20. Does MWAA perform any CA or validation continuous monitoring over its financial system? 

Answer:  Yes. 

21. Does MWAA use any service provider, if yes could we obtain the SSAE 16 formerly SAS 70 over the 
service providers activities? 

Answer: The Bank of New York Mellon is the Plans’ trustee / custodian.  Copies not available. 

22. Could the prime use its sub or teaming partner’s qualifications? 

Answer:  The prime should adhere to all of the minimum responsibility standards in the RFP. 

23. What level of effort it has taken to complete the audits in the past? 

Answer:  Each firm is required to provide a fixed number of hours sufficient to complete the audit.  
No estimates will be provided to any Offeror. 

24. What level of efforts MWAA expects it will take moving forward? 

Answer:  Sufficient levels of effort to complete the pension audit in a timely manner. 

 


